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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of NSE Data & Analytics Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NSE Data & Analytics Limited
('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement ofChanges in Equity

and the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to financial statements,

including a summary ofthe significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013

('the Act') in the manner so required and give a tnre and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, ofthe state of affairs ofthe Company as at

March 31, 2019, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and

its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

Section 143(10) ofthe Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements section ofour report'

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions ofthe Companies Act,

2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the Code ofEthics. We believe that the audit evidence

we have obtained is sulTicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board's report but does not include the

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon'
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In connection with our audit ofthe financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a tnre and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows ofthe Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the rules
made thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance ofadequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concem and using the going concem basis ofaccounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Audilor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldenti8 and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or enor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
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our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fiaud is
higher than for one resulting from enor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

o Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has intemal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifu our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concem.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements rcpresent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identifo during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other l",egal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order') issued by the

Govemment of India - Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 ofthe Act we enclose in the annexure 'A' a statement on the matters specified

in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe said Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) ofthe Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

ofour knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement ofChanges in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on March
31,2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31,2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to
financial statements ofthe Company and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls,
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements ofsection 197(16) ofthe Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is
in accordance with the provisions ofSection 197 ofthe Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 1l of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of the pending litigations its financial
position in its financial statements - refer note 29 to the financial statements;

(iD The Company does not have any long-term contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses. The Company does not have any derivative contracts.

(iiD There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For IC S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 100186W

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25,2019

o^.Lr)Will
Sachin A. Negandhi
Partner
Membership No: I12888
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(l)

Annexure to the Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph I under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' of our Report of even date on the financial statements for the year ended on
March 31,2019, of NSE Data & Analytics Limited)

In our opinion, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the normal
course ofaudit, which were necessary to the best ofour knowledge and belief, we report that:

(iv)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation offixed assets.

(b) A substantial portion of the fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management during the year. In our opinion the frequency of verification is

reasonable having regard to the size ofthe Company and the nature of its assets.

No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable properties. Accordingly, the
provisions ofclause 3(ii)(c) ofthe Order are not applicable.

The Company is a service Company and therefore does not maintain any

inventory; the directions in this regard are therefore not applicable.

As informe{ the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the

register maintained under Section 189 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
provisions of clauses 3 (iii) (a), 3 (iiD O) and 3 (iii) (c) of the Order are not
applicable.

As informed, the Company has not advanced any loans, made any investments or
given any guarantees and securities. Accordingly, clause 3 (iv) ofthe Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public and consequently the

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of section 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules fmmed
thereunder, with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable
to the Company. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board. National
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any other court or any other tribunal.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central

Govemment has not prescribed maintenance ofcost records under sub-section (1)

of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of services canied out by
the Company.

(a) According to the records ofthe Company, provident fund, income tax, goods and

services tax, duty ofcustoms, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to

it have been generally regularly deposited during the year with the appropriate

(v)

(vii)

(iD

(iii)

(vi)

,\'

Page 5 of 9



K. S. AIYAR & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(viii)

(ix)

authorities. As informed to us, the directions relating to employee's state
insurance are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
undisputed dues in respect of provident fund, income-tax, goods and services tax,
duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year
end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, income-tax, duty of customs and goods
and services tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as
follows:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
taken any money from any financial institution, bank, Government or debenture

holder, and accordingly clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and did not have any term loans

outstanding during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations furnished by the management,

which have been relied upon by us, there were no frauds by the Company or on the

Name of Statute
(Nature of dues)

Year to which
the amount
relates

Forum where the dispute is
pending

Amount ({ in
lakhs)

Income Tax Act,
1961. (Tax/
Interest)

2008-09 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal -
Mumbai

5.22

Income Tax Act,
1961. (Tax/
Interest)

20tt-12 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) XVI -Mumbai

142.96

Income
1961.

Interest)

Tax AcL
(Tax/

2012-r3 Deputy Commissioner of Income
Tax Circle 9(3Xl) - Mumbai

0.24

Income Tax Act,
1961. (Ta/
Interest)

201 5-16 Assessing Officer - Income Tax

- Mumbai
639.42

Central Excise
Act,1944 (B.E.D
and Education &
Higher
Education Cess)

September 2009
to March 2014

Commissioner of Goods and
Services Tax (Appeals)
Mumbai

24.20
(and related
interest &
penalty)

(x)
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Company by any of its employees or officers noticed or reported during the course
ofour audit.

In our opinion, managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions ofsection 197 ofthe Act
read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii)
ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 ofAc! where applicable, and the requisite details have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting
standards,

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

The Company has not entered into any nonrash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For K, S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 100186W

*"L A NZ,AI"
Sachin A, Negandhi
Partner

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25,2019 Membership No.: I 12888
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial
Statements of NSE Data & Analytics Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements ofNSE
Data & Analytics Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our
audit ofthe financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance ofadequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the

"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit oflnternal Financial Conhols and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe
intemal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment ofthe risks
of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriaie to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system with reference

to fi nancial statements.
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Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's intemal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility ofcollusion or improper management override ofcontrols,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such intemal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2019, based on the intemal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lntemal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia.

K. S. AIYAR & CO
CHARTT RED ACCOU NTANTS

For IC S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 100186Wn^
Sor-h-, A t7*,aL
Sachin A. Negandhi
Partner
Membership No.: I12888

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25,2019
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NSE DATA & ANALYTiGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIi/lITEO)

AALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

ASSETS

Nor.current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Caprtal work-in-progress
Other lntangible assets
lntangible assets under development
Financial Assets

- lnvestments
- Other fnancial assets

Nonrunent bank balances
Others

lncome Tax Assets (Net)
Total Non-currcnt assets

Current assets
Financial Assets

- lnvestments
- Trade receivables

- Cash and cash equivalents
- Bank balances other than cesh and cash

equivalents
- Other fnancial assets

Other cunent assets
Total Currcnt assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
EOUTTY
Equaty Share capital
Other Equity
TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Provisions
Tolal Non-current liabilities

Current liabililies
Financial Liabilities

' Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterpdses
(il) total outstanding dues of credjtors

other than micro enterprises and small
entemrises
Provisions
Cunent Tax Liabilities (Net)

Other current laabilities
Total current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EOUITY ANO LIABILITIES

2

2

3

3

4
5

'1,730.23

8.58
743.73

1,684.59

4,178.40

139.00
7.00

236.36

1,263.62
261.98
322.48
720.51

4,432.11

5.25
170 96

8,787.89

9,050.94

2,047.45
161.80

466.23
2'1.79

7,176.91

9,712.83

880.09
238 18

463.39
11 88

9

10

11

13 a
13 b

12

6
8

14

15

16

18

19

488.02

174.02

475.27

'10.8'l

1,186.35
27.95

1,196.22
15.96

1.94

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

Noles refer to above form an integml part ofthe
Balance sheet

This is the Balance sheet.6I6red to in our report of even dato

@za

For and on behalf of the Board of DirectorsFor K. S. AIYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
lCAlFirm Reqlstration No: 100166w

i",i"a"^l"
SACHIN A. NEGANDHI "
Partner
Membership Number:'112888

Place : Mumbai
Oate : April 25, 2019

MUKESH AGARWAL

Managing Director
(DrN 030s4853)

Company SecretatYgry
I

999.00
46.'t 3

656.00

1.231_24
'13,536.56

683 19
12,242 60

900.00 900 00
18,117.64 15 501 27
19,017.64 16,401.27

po280o1o)

17

1.419.66 1.328 85

2,818.79 2,542 97



NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX TNTERNATTONAL LtM|TED)

aror=*trt ot ,*or,t oto toaa to^ tr= tao* 
=*o=o 

,o^a, ar, ,(o*,3 
,n ,"*n.,

For the year For the year ended
ended31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Notes

REVENUE

Revenue from operations
Other lncome

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURE

a Revenue Sharing
Employee Benefits & Deputed

b Personnel Cost
c Depreciation
d Other Expenses

: Llcense fees
: Technology expense
: Administration & Premises
: Orhers

Total Expenses

Profit before Tax
Less:- Tax expense

Cunent Tax
Deferred Tax

Total tax expenses

Profit after Tax (A)

Other Comprehensive lncome
Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit
obligations

lncome tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive lncome (B)

Total Comprehensive lncome for the period

Earnings per equity share :

Basic (in Rs.)
Oiluted (in Rs.)

Summary of significant accounling policies

Notes refer to above form an integral part of the
Statement of Profit I Loss

12,236.56 9,853.40
1,216.84 1,190.05

@

20
21

22
2,3
23

2,283.18

614.36
716.12

3,128.12
771.00

1,756.87
301.95

1,918.00

473.17
224.14

3,021.67
873.87

1,535.45
246.58

298.30 s65.77

ffi

6,711.62

1 ,812.00
3.40

5,405.46

1,648.00
(67.s4)

This is the Statement of Profit & loss refered to in our report of even date

1,815.40 1,580.46

(r.e2) (0.81)

0.56 0.17

(136) (0.64)

4,894.86 3,825.37

54.40
54.40

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

26

14

42.51
42.51

For K. S. AIYAR & CO.
Chartored Accountants
lCAl Firp Registration No: l00t86W

*k"^fl.w^L
Partner
MembeFhip Number: 112888

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 25,2019

qL-j
MUKESH AGARWAL
Managing Director
(DrN 030548531

JOBANPUTRA

Wo*' 
secretary

L

14

27



(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance as at 01.04

changes in equity share c.pital during the year

as a131.03.2019

NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED

{FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITEDI

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2019

(B)OTHER EQUITY

This is the statement of changes in equity relered to in our reporl of even dale atlached

For K. S. AIYAR & CO

Chartorod AccountantB

lCAl Firm Reglstr.tlon No: 100186W

^ 4.
S*lL,:,.-, g P9.-J1L(t
Sachin A. NEgandhl
Pertnet
M6mb9r3hlp ltumbo,: 112888

Place : Mumbal
Dat6 : Aprll 25, 2019

For and on bshalt of tho Board ol Direclors

MUKESH AGARWAL
Managing Oiroctor
(otN 030s4853)'sp'

VIDHI JOBANPUTRA

^ Cadpany Socrotary

IcLoY

ln

Reserves and Surplus Total

Particulars Capltal
Redemption

R6setve

Gsnelal rosgrve Corporato social
Responsibility

Reserve

Retained Earnings

Balance at ths Aprll 1,2017

Protit for the year

OtherComprehensive lncome

Transfer back from Corporate Social Responsibilily
reserve to Retained Eamings

Transaclion wlth ownors ln thsir capaclty as

Dividend paid (lncluding dividend distribution tax)

300.00 2,792.O4 161-.71

(161.74)

t0,588.52

3,826.01

(0.64)
't6't.74

(2,166.44)

13,442.31

3,826.01

(0.64)

\2 166.44)

Balance as at 31.03.2018 300.00 2,792.08 0.00 ,12,409.19 15,501.27

Balanco at tho APrll '1,2018

Profit for the year

Oiher Comprehensive lncome

Trcnsaction with owners in thelr capacity as

Dividend paid (lncluding dividend distribution tax)

300.00 2,792.08 0.00 12,,109.19

4,896.22

(1.36)

(2,278.50\

,15,501.27

4,896.22

(1.36)

\2,278.s0l

Balance as at 31.03.2019 300.00 2,792.08 0.00 15,025.56 18,117.64

P/( RAVIKUMAR
Chairman

.>



{FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 MARCH. 2019

31.03.2019 31 03 2018

A) CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET PROFIT BEFORE TA(

Add : Adiultmenb tor:
- Deprecialion and amorlisation expense
- Bad Debls {ritlen off
- Diminulion in Valuo ol lnvestm€nls and Sundry balance

wtcfl
Le8s : AdjBtmonb lor i
- Exc€ss Provision Written back
- Sundry Balanc€s Witten back
- Ercnango diferences on revalualion of assets and liabilities

- lnlerest income on Long Term lnvestment
- lnlerest income on Bankdeposil
- Gain o. sle ol investments
- N€l gain on linancial assels mandatonv measured at fair

value throuqh proft or bss

6,711.62

716.12
0.00
0.00

(0.00)
(0.04)

(153.55)
(64-05)

t549.18)
(396.88)

{1,167.33)
0.94

(546.03)
90.81
1S.98

5,405.67

221.11
23.88

0.10

(2E.09)

{51.57)
(0.34)

{160.24)
(63.83)

(236.15)
(648 37)

(76.75)
447 _12

(25a.77)
100.32

10 72

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 6261.01 1,465-20

B)

c)

For K. S. AIYAR E cO.
charterod Account nt!
lCAl Firm Reqistrelion Nor 100186W

Adju.tmrnt5 lor :
( lncrease)/Oegease in tmde receivables
lndeas€r(oegease) i,r trade payables
(lncrease)/Decr€ase in Othe.Assets
lnsease/(Decrease) in Other Curreni liabilities
Oher nnancial liabililios, other liabilities and provisions

CASH GENERATED FROIlI OPEFiATIONS

lncome taxes paad

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . IOIAI (A)

CASHFLOI,Y FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Paymenl for property, plant and equipmeni
Banl deposits placed
Purciase ol inveslmenls
Proce€ds from bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal / redemption ol investments
lnterest received

NETCASH FROM {USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES. TOTAIIA)

CASHFLOI,Y FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid

Dividend distdbution tar paid

NEf CASH FROM {USED IN) FINANCING ACTTVITIES . TOTAI (C)

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH

EOUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

CASH ANo cAsH EOUIVALENTS: OPENING aALANCE

CLOSING CASH aNDCASH EOUIVALEN]S: CLOSING AALANCE

NET INCREASE I{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

(1,E90.00) (1,800.00)
(3EE.50) (366.44)

ffi
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4,660.Zt'l

{1,705.33)

4,71184

(1,710 98)

(2,314.66)
(1,19E.00)
(5,2110.00)

656.00
7,OEE.OE

255.62

{1,977.91)

{8,8,{9.93)
253.00

9,632.61
235.11

{76.38)

238.16

161.E0

110.88

234.18

(76.38)

Fo.and on behalr ofthe Board ol Directors

4@:RAVIKUMAR MUKESHAGARWAL

127 30

Noios to ca5h Flow statement:

The above Cash Ftow Sralement has been prepared under the 'hdireci Melhod" as set out in the lnd AS' 7 on Staiemenl of

Casn Fbw as nolmed under Companies (Accounls) Rules, 2015.

The above slalemenl of cash llows should be read in conjunclionwlh lhe accompanving noles

Thi. i. th. stetemontofc.3h flow ref.rad to in our r€port ot €von dato.

n *Va!" Chairman Manaqinq Oireclor

SACHIN A. NEGANOHI

MomboBhip Numbo.: 1r2888

Dale : ADril25.2019
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Background and Significant Accounting Policies

Background

The NSE Data & Analytics Limited (Formerly known as DotEx lntemational Ltd) ("NDAL" or"the Company"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of NSE lnvestment limited (Formerly known as NSE Strategic lnvestment
Corporation Ltd.), was incorporated in June 2000. Company has changed its name to NSE Data & Analytics
Limited w.e.f 30b Ju1y,2018. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of dissemination of prices,

volume, order book and trade data relating to securities and various indexes. lt also provides weFbased
trading platform to the stock and commodity brokers. NDAL is a SEBI registered KYC registration agency
and NDAL KRA was appointed as Application Service provider for Central KYC Registry initiated by Central
Registry of Securitization Asset Reconstruction and Security lnterest of lndia (CERSAI).

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the signiflcant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements ("financial statements"). These policies have been consistently applied to allthe years / periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost basis, except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and lndian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5] and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

(i) Histoical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

. Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value, and

. defined benefit plans - plan assets are measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price

is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. ln estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characleristics of the asset or liabilaty which

market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

ln addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2

or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the

significance of the inputs to the fair value measuremenl in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(b) Foreign currency translation and transactions

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial

ry\"
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statemenls are presented in lndian currency (lNR), which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded at the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the period end exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Revenu6 recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied lnd AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. lnd AS 115
replaces lnd AS 18 Revenue and lnd AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company has adopted lnd
AS 1 15 using the cumulative effect method. The effect of initially applying this standard is recognised
at the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). The standard is applied retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative information in

statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the comparative information continues to be reported
under lnd AS 18 and lnd AS 1 1 . The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements
of the Company is insignificant.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed
as revenue are net of allowances, incentives, service taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and there is reasonable certainty of ultimate
relaisation. Revenue is recognised in the period when the service is provided as per
arrangements/agreements with the customers.

(l) Revenue is being recognised as and when there is reasonable certainty of ultimate realisation.

Online Datafeed income is recognised on a time proportion method and revenue on account of
fees with respect to the period of the contract on an accrual basis.

(ll) Fees received in respect of unexpired period of the contract is treated as a current liability and is
recognised as income in the respective period.

lncome Tax

The income tax expense or credit for lhe period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable

income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and

liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. lt

(c)

(d)
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(e)

establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and antends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the llability simultaneously.

Current, deferred tax and dividend distribution tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. ln this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends is recognised consistently with the presentation of the
transaction that creates the income tax consequence. Dividend distribution tax is charged to statement
of profit and loss if the dividend itself is charged to statement of profit and loss. lf the dividend is
recognised in equity, the presentation of dividend distribution tax is recognised in equity.

lmpairment of assets

lntangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting pefiod.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assel is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so thal the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amounl, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is

treated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, bank balances.

Trade receivablss

(f)

,)'

+

(c)
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Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Provision for doubtful debts and bad debts:

Other overdue amounts are provided for as doubtful debts or are written off as bad debts if the

same are considered doubtful/ lrrecoverable in the opinion of the management.

(h) lnvestments and other financial assets

Recognition

All financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a conlract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the

timeframe established by the market concerned.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequentty at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

. those measured al amortised cost.

The classillcation depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing

those assets changes.

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financiat asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a

flnancial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to

the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through

profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company's business model for

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement

categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash

flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain

or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a

hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

lnteiesi income from lhese financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest

rate method.

. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of

contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets'cash flows represent

solely paymenis of principal and interest, are measUred at fair Value through other comprehensive

income(FVoCl).Movementsinthecarryingamountaretakenthroughocl,exceptforthe
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses

"v
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which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised

in other gains/ (losses). lnterest income from these financial assets is included in other income

using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI

are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity investments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investmenls at fair value. Where the Company's

management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other

comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profil

or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income

when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other

gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. lmpairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)

on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

(ii) lmpairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets

carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends

on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

A financial asset is de-recognised only when

. The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

. retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all

risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. ln such cases, the financial asset is de-

recognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership

of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and

rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has

not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company relains control of the financial asset,

the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the flnancial asset.

(iii) lncome recognition

lnterest income

lnterest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

q
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(i)

Dividends are recognised in profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the

amount of the dividend can be reliably measured.

Financial liabilities

Classification as debt or eouitv

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the

substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

(i) lnitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial

recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate

method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all

changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled

or expires.

Property, plant and equipment (including CWIP)

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to

the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component

accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance

are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred'

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residualvalue

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual

values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Office equipment 4 to 5 years

Computer systems - others 4 years

Computer software 4 years

Telecommu nication sYstems
,\

4 years

n
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The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the company which are

higher than those specified by Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual

usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5olo of the original cost of the asset. The
asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted on a prospective basis if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. and are

included in profit or loss

Depreciation on assets purchased / disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with

reference to the date of additions / deductions.

Fixed assets whose aggregate cost is Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

(k) lntangible assets

Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and

unique software products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when

the following criteria are met:

. it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use

. management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

. there is an ability to use or sell the software

. it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits

. adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use

or sell the software are available, and
. the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Direcfly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs

and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development cosls are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point

at which the asset is available for use

Computer software is amortised over a period of 4 years.

(l) Trade and other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end

of financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities

unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at

their fair value.

(m) Provisions
provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and

the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measu
required to settle the
determine the Present

"VL//a

red at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure

present obligation to be settled at a future date The discount rate used to

value is a pre{ax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
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value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage

of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises

from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation or a reliable eslimate of the amount cannot be made.

(n) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled

wholly within l2 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service

are the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Short term employee benefits are

recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the related service is rendered. The

liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Leave Encashment: Liability on account of Leave encashment is provided based on Acturial Valuation

at Balance Sheet date.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following poslemployment schemes:

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and

(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund and superannuation.

Gratuity obligations

The Ultimate Holding Company has maintained a Group Gratuity Cum Life Assurance Scheme with

the Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia (LlC) towards which it annually contrjbutes a sum determined

by LlC. provisions are made for the defined benefit with respect to-gratuity liability based on the

present value of deflned benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value of plan assets as per the

actuanal valuation calculation.

Defined contribution Plans

Provident fund
The company is registered with Regional Provident Fund office, Bandra, Mumbai, and both the

employee and the employer make monthly contribution equal to 12o/o ofthe employee's basic salary

respectively in case of Managing Director, Mr. Mukesh Agarwal

Superannuation
superannuation benefits for employees designated as chief managers and above are covered by

group policies with the Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia maintained by the Ultimate Hodlding

6o.p"ny. The contribution for the year is reimbursed to the Ultimate Holding Ccmpany is charged to

revenue. There are no other obligations other than the annual contribution payable'

12-



(o) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no

longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at

the end of the reporting period.

(p) Earnings per share

(iii) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
. the profit attributable to owners of the Company

. by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

(ii) Oiluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share

to take into account:
. the afler income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potentaal

equity shares, and
. the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding

assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(q) Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

(r) Reclassification

Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary.

q)n
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,
will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to
estimates and assumptions lurning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed
information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or rudgments are:

Current tax expense and payable Note 14

Fair value of unlisted securities Note 4 & 9
Useful life of intangible asset Note 3

Estimates and judgments are continually evalualed. They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financlal impact on the Company
and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(s) Recent accounting pronouncements

lnd AS 116 Leases:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notifled lnd AS 116, Leases. lnd AS 116 will replace the
existing leases Standard, lnd AS 17 Leases, and related lnterpretations. The Standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the
lessee and the lessor. lnd AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The
Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. lnd AS 116 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of lnd AS '116 is annual periods beginning on or after April '1, 2019. The
standard permits two possible methods of transition:
. Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying lnd. AS I Accounting Policies,

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
. Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discourtted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:
.lts carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at

lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or
. An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments

related to that lease recognized under lnd AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.
Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the
'Modifled Retrospective Approach' for transitioning to lnd AS 116, and take the cumulative ad.iustment to

retained earnings, on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year

ended March 31,2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The Company has elected certain available
practical expedients on transition.

The company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendmenl on the financial statements.
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lnd AS l2 Appendix C, Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified lnd AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over lncome
Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments
under lnd AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax
authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to
use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected
value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach - Under this
approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in

accordance with lnd AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without

using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized

by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of lnd AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1 ,

2019. The Company will adopt the standard on Aprit 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulalive

effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1 , 2019 without adjusting comparatjves.

The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

Amendment to lnd AS 12 - lncomelaxes:

on March 30, 2019, Ministry of corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in lnd AS 12,

'lncome Taxes', in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit

or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those

past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1 , 2019. The

Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Amondment to lnd AS 19 - plan amendment, curtailment or settlement:

on March 30, 2019, Ministry of corporate Affairs issued amendments to lnd AS 19, '.Employee Benefits"

in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments

require an entity:

. to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the

period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, and

. to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction

in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 'l , 2019 The

Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment'
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NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 20'19

Note 2: Property Plant and Equipment

ry

(Rs ln lakhs)

Particulars .oul'"tnlEir" i'rt'.'$ "o"J"i[*'o ;^"##fiI TOTAL
CAPITAL
WORK IN

PROGRESS

Cost as at 01.04.2018

Gross carrying amount
Cost as at 01.04 2018

Add tions
Drsposals

2.41

(0.59)

1,753 68

347 79

1,17111
275 02

(615.33)

45.83

318 27

(2.89)

2,973.03

941 08
(618 81)

261.98

687 68

(941.08)

Closing gross carrying amount 1.82 2,10'1.47 830.80 361.21 3,295.30 8.58

Accum umated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 01 April 2018

Oepreciation charge during the year

Drsposals

222
010

(0.59)

645 79

326 98

1,015.57
117 18

(615.33)

45 83
28 2',1

(2 89)

1.709 41

474.47

(618.81)

Closing accumumated depreciation 1.73 974.77 517,42 71.15 1,565.07

Net carrying arnount as at 31.03.2019 0.09 '1,126.70 313.38 290.06 1,730.23 8.58

Year ended 31 March 2018

Gross carrying anount
Cost es al01 04.2017

Addrtrons

Drsposals
Transferc

2.41 657.46 1,035.25 45.83 1,740.95 10.50
. 1,096.22 135.86 - 1,232.Oa 769.97

(18 49)

Closinq qross carryinq amount 2.41 1,753.68 1,171.11 45.83 2,9-/3.01 261.98

Accum!mated depreciation

Accumulated depreciation as at 01 April2017
Depreciation charqe during the year

Drsposals

2.12

0.10

599.89

45.90

975.12

39.85

45.83 L,623.56

85.85

e,i6siigaccum uma,taAGp'eaEti,cn 2.22 645.79 1,015.57 45.83 1,709.42

0.19 1,107.89 155.54 1,263.62 251.98

\\
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NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS OOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 3 : lntangible assets
n lakhs

COMPUTER
SOFTWARE

TOTAL
lntangible assets

under development

Cost as at 0'1.04.2018
Gross carrying amount
Cost as at 01 .04.2018
Additions
Disposals
Transfers

681.01
662.90

681.01 720 5'l
662.90 'l,626.98

- (662.90)
Closing gross carrying amount 1,343.91 1,343.91 1,684.s9

Accumumated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 0l April 20'18

Depreciation charge during the year
Disposals

358.53
241.65

358.53
241 .65

Closing accumumated depreciation 600.18 600.18

743.73 743.73 1,684.59

Gross carrying amount
Cost as at 01.04.2017
Additions
Disposals
Transfers

866.32

(185.31 )

866.32

(185.31)
720.51

Closing gross carrying amount 681.01 681.01 720.51

Accumumated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 01 April 20'17
l)ep.ecration charge during the year
Disposals

248.32
138.29
(28.0e)

248.32
'138.29

(28.0e)

closing accumumated depreciation 358.53 358.53

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.20'18 322.48 322.48 720.5',1

Significant estimate: Useful life of intangible assets under development

The Group has completed the development of software that is used in its various business processes. As at 31 lilarch 2019, the net

carrying amount of this software was i 743.73 lakhs (3'l l/arch 2018: < 322.48 lakhs). The Group estimates the useful life of the

software to be 4 years based on the expected technical obsolescence of such assets. However, the actual useful life may be shorter
or lona:er than 4 vears alenendino on technical innovations and comnPtit.)r ections "

N
. \A,(+tJ
./
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NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
NOTE-4: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars
31.03.20't 9 31.03.20't8

Number of
U nits

(in Rs. Lakhs)
Number of

U nits
(in Rs. Lakhs)

I

I

IV

lnvestrnent in equity instruments (fully paid up)
Unquoted equity instruments at cost
ln Associate Companies
NSE Foundation

Total equity instruments

lnvestnent in €xchange traded funds
Quoted exchange traded funds at FVPL
R Shares Nifty Bees
Kotak Mahindra MF - Kotak Banking ETF

Total exchange traded funds

lnvestrnent in bonds
Quoted bonds at amortised cost
Tax free bonds
7.35% National Highways Authority of lndia 11 Jan 2031

7 .19'k lndia Infrastructure Finance Company Limited - 22 Jan 2023
7.'18 % Indian Railway Finance Corpn Ltd - Tranche 1 - Series 1 - 19 Feb 2023

7.19olo lndian Railway Finance Corporation Ltd - 31 Jul 2025
8.00 % lndian Railway Finance Corpn Ltd - Tranche 1 - Series l -23Feb2022

Totaltaxfree bonds

Funds
investments in mutual funds at FVPL

Kotak FNIP Series 202 - 1144 Days - Direct - Growth
lClCl Prudential Fixed iraturity Plan - Series 80 - 1'187 Days Plan G - Direct-GroMh
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - )qXlV - Series I - Direct - GroMh

Total mutual funds

otal non-current invesknents
amounl of quoled investments and markel value thereof
amount of unquoted investments

1,000 o:oo 1 ,000 0.00

0.00 0.00

23,750
32,250

289.89
t0s.8t

52,800
71,800

554.00

395.70 731.87

50,000
45,000

50,000

50

32,626

436_77
461.86

533.27
560.37
353.15

50,000
45,000
50,000

50
32,626

536.90
463.20

537.14
563.8s
357.93

2,445.42 2.459.02

10,00,000
50,00,000
57,50,000

115.08
577.98
644.22

10,00,000
50,00,000
57,50,000

'106.95

536.35
597.93

1,337.28 1,241.23

4,178.40 4.432.1
4,262.g'.l. 4,442.48

,l
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NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31 , 2019

Other financial assets (non-current)

Non-current bank balances
-with maturity for more than 12 months
Earmarked Oeposits with maturity for more than 12
months

Others
Security deposit
lnterest accrued on Bank deposits

Total

Other financial assets (current)

Others
lnterest accrued on Bank deposits

Total

lncome Tax Assets (net)

lncome Tax paid including TDS (Net of Provisions)
Total

Other current assets

Balances with Statutory Authorities
Prepaid expenses
Other Advances
Total

(Rs. ln lakhs)
31.03.2019 3'l .03.201 8

199.00

199.00

6.99
0.01

5.24
0.01

7.00 5.25

206.00

3't .03. 20't 9 31 .03.201 8

46.'t3 72.31

46.13 72.31

31 .03.2019 3'1.03.2018

236.36 170.96
ZJO.JO 170.96

31 .03.2019 31 .03.2018

't ,129.04
10't .25

0.9s

624.65
57 .54

1.00
1,231.24 683.19

1E



NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED}
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
NOTE- 9: CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Number of
Units

(Rs. ln lakhs) Number of
Units

(Rs. ln lakhs)

I

(i)
Mulual Funds
Quoted investments in mutual funds at FVPL
Axis Liquid Fund -Direct - GroMh
Axis Treasury Advantage Fund - Gro\tyth - Direct Plan

Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Direct - GroMh

Aditya Birla Sun Lafe Savings Fund - Direct - GroMh
Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund - Direct - GroMh
DSP Blackrock Money l\4anager Fund - Direct - GroMh
DSP Blackrock Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct - Growth
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct - GroMh
lClCl Prudential Savings Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
lClCl Prudential Flexible lncome Plan - GroMh - Direct
lClCl Prudential Flexible lncome Plan - GroMh
lClcl Prudential Ultra Short Term Plan - Direct - Grov/th
IDFC Money iranager - Treasury Plan - Direct - GroMh
IDFC Money Manager - Direct - GroMh
lnvesco lndia Money Market Fund - Direct - Growth
Kotak Savings Fund - Direct Plan - GroMh
Kotak Liquid Scheme - Plan A - Direct - GroMh
Kotak Money Market Scheme - Direct Plan - GroMh
LIC Nomura MF Laquid Fund - Direct - GroMh
L&T Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct - GroMh
LIC MF Savings Fund - Direct - GroMh
Reliance Money Market Fund - Direct - GroMh
Reliance Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Plan - GroMh
Reliance Liquidity Fund - Direct - GroMh
Sundaram Ultra Short Term - Direct Plan - GroMh
Sundaram Low Duration Fund - Direct Plan - GroMh
SBI Magnum Ultra Shoft Duration Fund - Direct - GroMh
SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Direct - GroMh
UTI Money Market - Direct Plan - GroMh
UTlTreasury Advantage Fund - Direct - croMh

Total unquoted mutual funds

Total current investments
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
AgOregate amount of unquoted investments

(\

14,O34
20,272

1,60,862

1,79,008
14,117

214
2,95,156

2,47,991
27,223

9,73,504
5,856
1,050

36,90,497
8,62,103

9,261

1t
35,67,336

13,611
1,784

34,468
17,693

291.00
434.98

404.89

447.O3
357.90

7-88
1,063.80

74.23
590.79
297.46
221.6'l

32-41

1,149.19
257.46
262.96

10.35

938.68
567.53

52.24
724.16
460.38

1,80,978

1,79,008

86,64,867
214

2.U.951
90,439

33,33,097
33,22,8_12

9,73.604
16,608
1,050

401
32,03,512
15,68,69s

33S
I

43,78,189

aa,ouu
20,683

622.43
780.s2

1,'to4.18
7.34

853 82
301.28
609.74

:
274.85
584.92
29.95
12.63

923.66
433.24

9.50
0.23

'1,065 97

uri.ou
499.19

9,050.94 9,7',12.43

9,050.94 9,712.83

9,050.94 g,712-.83

./o 20



NSE DATA & AiIALYTICS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWiI AS DOTEX INTERIIATIONAL LIMITED)

Notes to flnanclal statemcnts fo, the year ended March 31, 20rg

10 Trado rocoiv.blog

Secured. considered good

Unsecured, considered oood
Havino signifcant increaso in credit risk
Credit impaired

Less : Expected credit loss

Totrl

Cash and cash equlvalent8

Balances wilh banks : in cur,enl accounts
Total

Bank balancea otherthan Cash and Cash
equlvalent$

Bank Oeposits
with maturi9 less than 12 months at the balance sheet

date

'Earmarked Fixed Deposits with maturity less than 12

months at the balance sheet date

Total

Authorised
'1,30,00,000 (Previous Year 1,30,00,000 ) (ason
01/042017 1.30,00,000) Equity Shares

of Rs 10 each.

lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up
9,OO,OOO (Previous year 9,00.000) (as on 01i042017
9,00,000) Equity shares of

Rs.'10 each fully Paid uP

Tolal

2,017.15

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

(Rs in lakhs)
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

2,017.15 880.09

2,017.15 880.09

880.09

11

999.00

156.00

500.00

' Earmarked deposits of Rs 5 crores are restricled and includes deposits towards central KYc project bank

gaurantee.

13 a Equity Share Capital
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

900.00

Tein,,s anct tigh6 allached to equity shares

irl iil"iorpi"v rt"" only one class;lequity shales having a par value of Rs' 10 per share' They entitle the

i.,otoel. to pariicip"tu in oiv;dends. ln the eveniof liquidation ofthe Company, the holders of equaty shares will be

"ntitted 
to receir" ,eraining assets ofthe company, after distrabution of all preferential amounls. The distribution

willbe in proportion lo the number ofequity shares held by the shareholders'

(2) The Board of Directors, in their meeting of April 25, 2019, proposed a divldendof Rs' 27'50 (previous year

hi. ztll per equity strare. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subiect to the approval of the

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General l\,eeling'

(3) The Board of Directors, in lheir meeting ofApril27.2018. proposed a dividend.of Rs' 21l- (previous year Rs'

)Ol) plr equlty snare which has been approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on June

e, z6ia. Tlu tot"toiuia"nd paid during the year ended March 31, 2019 amounts to Rs 1 890lacs excluding

dividend distribution tax Rs. 388.50|acs

Details o, .hareholdeB holdlng more than 5% sh.ro ln the companv ll{o: 9tEf3r6} : : - - -

- 

3103.2019 31 03 2ol8
N6 No.

NSE lnvestment Limited (Formerly known as NSE

Strategic lnvestment Corporation Limited)

Oetalb ol .hareholde6 holding more than 5% sha.e in tho Companv C/e liq!'9l-oldinq ) " - -

- 

3t.ol.2otg 31.03.2018

NSE lnvestment Limited (Formerly known as NSE

Strategic lnvestment Corporation Limited)

2l

12

999.00 656 00

1.300.00 1,300.00

900 00

ffi

x hotahq % 
119!d!19,

- 

too.ooy. loo.oo%



NSE OATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED}

13 lb) : OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars Capital

Redemption
Reserve

General reseave Co.porate Social
Responsibility

Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Balance ai the April 1,2017

Proflt for the year

Other Comprehensive lncome
Transfer back from Corporate Social Responsibility
reserve to Retained Earnings

Transaction with owners in their capacity as

owners
Dividend paid (lncluding dividend distribution tax)

300.00 792.08 16't 74

(16't.74)

r0,588.52

3,826.01
(0.64)

161.74

12,166.44)

13,a42.U

3,826.01
(0_e)

12,166.44)

Balance as at 31.03,2018 300.00 2,792.08 0.00 12,409.19 '15,501.27

BalancE at the April '1,2018

Proflt for the year

Other Comprehensive lncome
Transaction with owne6 in their capacity as
0wneali
Oividend paid (lncluding dividend distribution tax)

300.00 2,792.08 0.00 12,409.r9
4,896.22

(1.36)

(2,278.50],

15,501.27
4,896.22

(1.36)

(2,278 50)

Balance as at 31,03.2019 300.00 2,792.08 0.00 15,025.56 18,'117.64

Oo



NSE OATA & ANALYTICS LIUITEO
(FORMERLY XNOWN AS OOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMI]ED)
Noles lo linlnclal 3tllemenG lor lh€ y.ar onded March !1,2019

i! ln.ome & D.f.red iat..

C'rnonl lar e)@ense (')

Decrcase / (ncrease) in defened iar assels
(Decreas€) / anqease in defened lar liabiliii€s
Adiuslrneni in oher equ y fi retEined eamino
Total d.forrod t.r.rp.m6/ (b€nefi 0
Tot llncom. r.r erpaEo!' lvil=lil+lvl

(ii)
(iiD

(iv)

1,812.00

0.06
3.34

3./O

1.6:18.00

(126 42)
58.89

(67.54)

' This €xclud* nel defenEd lax o4€ns€/(ben€f0oo
ou|el compf6h€n5rv6 income (vii)

b) Reconciliation oft r exponso and lha accountlng Prorit multiplied by lndia'rtar r.te:

017

Pmft b€Iora inohe lax exDense

T6I atthe lndaan Tar Rate
T.r .ff.ct ol.mountl rhlch .r. not
dedoctlbl.4lal'blol In c.lcul.tinq t blo hcomo

lnteresl on tax lre€ bonds
Expenditure rglated to etempt income
Ner (gain)Ioss on fnancial assels mandalori,
Amonisalion ol Prcmium on GovuDebl Sec.
MTM re8lrzed on $l€ ol inveslrnenls

(Prolit )/ Loss on sale ol invostmenls laxed al other

Ependiture on CSR .clivities

Speifc Tar deduclions

Delered rax riabilirras (reo

31.03.2019 3103.2018
6,711 62
29.120%
1.951.4?

(48 65)
706

393
(94.62)

1.71

12.98

r12.13

5.406 47
34.608%
1.471.07

(57.81)
10.70

19.18)
4.64

(265.28)

70.47

1?.25

12.'t3

The balance conpnses temoorarv differences attribulable to - . --
Faniculgrs 31.03.2019 31'03 2018

o.Ln.d lncome iar a.lot3
Prcvision lor l€ave encashment
Financiallssets al FarValue lhrouoh OCI
FinancialAssels ai FarValue lh.ouoh Droft and toss
coniribution lo corc S.tlement Guarante€ Fund

Oofored ancome tar liabiliUes
Propertv, olanl and equipmentand inveshent orcpertv
FinancialArsels ai FairValue lhrcuqh OCI

Financial Assels at Eair value ihmuoh prol .nd Loss

Conhbutonto Core Setlemenl GuaEhlee Fund

Movomont in defoEod t r.taot!

At I April2017
charged4cfedired)

- io olher comprehensive income

At l1 Uar.h 2016

- to olher comprehensivo incomo

Movom. in delorr€d i.r li.bilni.s

ai 1April2017

- lo olher comprehensive income

At 11 M.rch 2OlE
hoact ol rate chanoe on defened tax

charoed/(creditsd)

to olher cffiPrehensive in@me

ffictuafilcain/ Ohers Tot l

encashment Fair value lhrough PaL Goss) knugh act

a4.29 126.424213

(0 05) {0.05)

"qrlpln"nt 
Feir valu6lhmugh P&L (Loss) hrcugh OCI

20t9

*

(Rs.ln lakhs)
31.03.2019 31 03.2018

(2:141) (86.471

1 8r5 40 1.580 43

d)

541 15

5l i5 771 5! S;

aot 0,07

7.50 3.34



NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITEO
(FORi'ERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

Notes to financial statements Ior the year ended March 31, 20'19

Proviaion (non current)

Employee benefits obligation
Provisaon for gratuity

Provision (cu.rent)

Employee benefils obligation
Provision for gratuity
Provision for Leave Travel Allowance
Provision for leave encashment
Others

Trado payable8 (current)

Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Trade payables to related parties (refer note number 25)

Total

lncome tax liabilities (net)

lncome Tax liabilities (Net of Advances)

Other current liabilitiea

Statutory dues payable
Advance from customers
lncome received in advance
Total

ReYenue trom operations

Salo of servicea
Online Datafeed Service Fees

Recovery of expenses lrom NSEIL

Oealer Access Charges
KYC Registration Agency fees
CKYC lncome
Total

Other income

lnterest income from flnancial assets at amortised cost

lnterest lncome on Bank Deposits

Net gain on sale of financial assets mandatorily measured at

fair value through Proflt or loss

Net fair value gain / (loss) on financial assets mandatorily

measured at fair value through profit or loss

Penalty income

Miscellaneous lncome

lnterest on Dealer Access Charges

Net toreign exchange gains

Total

(Rs in lakhs)

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

21.79 11.88

21.79 11.88

3'1.03.2019 31 03 2018

't5

16

0.'14

19.70
8.1't

0.08
1.59

14.29

27.95 15.96

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

10.8.r

1,069.21

117.14

nru.ru

220.47

1,197.,t 6 1.196.22

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

31.03.20'19 31 03.2018

374.41
'157.06

254.54
419.20

8!!.1! _______

31.03.2019

Fot lhe year ended
31.03.2018

9,133.5'l

2,',t25.45

240.70
148.22

7,667.18

1 ,611 93

222.28
176.11

175 90

Fot the yeat ended For the year ended

153.s5

64.05
549.19

396.88

3.61

1.54

0.32

63.83
236.15

648.37

1.69

79.65

0.12

1,419.86 1,328 85

z\

20
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NSE OATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS OOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

22 Employee Benefits expenses

Deputed Personnel Cost

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund

Total

Other Expenses

Licence Fees

Repairs & Maintanence - ComPuters

Helpdesk Charges

lnternet Charges

lT Management & Consultancy Charges

Managed Datacenter Hosting Service Charges

Space and lnfrastructure usage charges

Professional Charges

Data Subscription Fees

Electricity Charges

Empanellement Charges

Telephone Expenses

Loss on Exchange fluctuation

Software Expenses

Bank Charges

Outsourcing Charges

Processing charges

Web Hosting Charges

Meeting & Conference

Auditors' Remuneration

Audit Fees

Out of Pocket ExPense
For Other Services

Bad debts Woff
Business Promotion ExPenses

Travelling Expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

Rermbursement of Membeds Claim

Other Expenses

Total

(Rs in lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

446.78

156.04

11.54

330.17

126.67

16.33

6'14.36 473.17

For the year ended
31.03.2019

For the year ended
31 .03.2018

77',t .00

205.s8

214.36

524.58

195.92

432.41

154.61

75.43

49.59

31.47

10.00

47.65

74.41

4.47

8.32

9.12

60.02

s.28

1.75

0.35

i,,o
10.28

89.14

102.57

44.67

873.87

284.69

226.38

431.90

240.30

249.85
1 10.34

84.77

37.91

20.30

10.41

15.78

12.17
'13.85

4.82

8.35

11 .57

50.56

8.61

1.50

zs.aa

0.55

1 3.84

244.17

4'1.30

-------- 3,1?f,12 3'021 67
.
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NSE DATA A ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITEO)

Notes to financial statemenb forthe yearended March 31, 20rg

24 Operaling segments are reporled in a manner consislentwith lhe inlemal reporting povided tolhe Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") oflhe Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources

and assessing performance ollhe operating segments, has been identified as lhe Managing Direcior and CEO
of the company.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business ofdassemination ofdata (Datafeed) Add(onally il provides a

teciliiy to lhe members of va ous Slock Exchanges/Comrnodily Exchanges to acc€ss respective markets and

also acts as SEB|registered fiC regist6tion agency. Additionally OotEx KRAwas appointed as an Application

SeNice provider lor CentralfiC Registry initialed by CentralRegislry of Secu ritisation Asset Reconslruction

and Security lnteresl of lndia (CERSAI) The project aims to consolidate and validate personal idenlity data and
geneaate Unlque fiC lD forclients and make it available to lhe complete linancial services industry. Segmental

information on the basis of above mentioned operal,ons as per lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS)108
'Operatrng Segments' is as below

31.03.2019

Sogmeni Revenue.
Datafeed

Others

Tot l

S.gment ResulL
Datafeed

Olherc

Tolal

lJnallocable lncome (net o, unallocable
expendlture)

Protit Before Tax

Tareg

Net Profit AIter Tax

Segm€ntasset!
Dalafeed

Others

Unallocaled

Total

S€ment Llabllitles
Datafeed

Othels
Unallocaled

Total

Cepltal Expendituro
Datafeed

Others

Total

Oepreclallon
Datafeed

others
Total

9,r84.8r
3,r03.38

12,288.19

6,r36.r1
(589.70)

5,546.42

't,165.20

6,709.70

't,814.84

4,894.86

7,74A 53

2,186.34

9,934.87

5,100.57
(802.58)

4.257 _99

1,108.50

5,405.67

1,580.30

3,825.37

31 03_20't9 31 03.2018

353.90

s,163,24
17,806.31

23,323.45

1,372.71

398.28

1,535.78

3,306.80

45.00

1,559.00

r,604.00

,t10.45

605.67

71G.12

636.03

2,740.52

16,002 97

19,419.52

1,180 64

1.056 77

780.83

3,018.24

'1,232_08

1,232.08

27 19

196.95

224',14

Revenue from extemal customers (Oatiafeed Segmeno ------- 3t O32Ol9 3'1.03 2018

lndia

Outside lndia

26%
7 40/.

34%
66%

100%

The revenue infoamataon above is based on the locations ofthe cuslomers

Major cu3tomer

Thelollowing table gives details in respect of percentage ofrevenues gene6ted from top live customercl

100%

Particulals For the year ended
31.03.20r9

For the year ended
31.03.2018

Revenue IIom toP five customers 35% 28%
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NSE DATA E ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITEO)
Notes to tinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2Ol9

25 ln compliance with lnd AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures", as notified under Rute 3 of the Companies (tndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendmeni Rules, 20.16 the
required disclosures are given in the table belo\,\,:

(a) Names ofthe related parties and retated party relationships

(b) Related Party transactions
(Rs. ln lakhs)

1 National Stock Exchange of lndia Limiied Ihe Ultimate Holding Company
2 NSE lnvestment Limited lFormerly known as l'.lSE

Strategic investment Corporation Limited)
Holding Company

3 NSE Clearing Limited (Formerty known as Nation.al
Securities ClearinO Corporation Limited)

Subsidiary of tJltimate Hotding Company

4 NSE lndices Limited (Formerly known as tndia lndex
Services & Products Ltd.)

Fellow Subsidiary

5 NSE lnfotech Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary
6 NSEIT Limited Fellow Subsidiary
7 NSE.IT (US) Limited Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary
I Aujas Networks Pvt Ltd Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary (w e.f. 22.$2f19)
9 National Securities Depository Limited Associate of the Ultimate Holding Company
10 BFSI Sector Skill Council of lndia Assoclate of the Ultimate Holding Company
11 Power Exchange lndia Limited Associate of the Holding Company
12 NSDL e-Governance lnlrastructure Limited (former,y

known as National Securities Depository Limited)
Associate of the Holding Company

13 NSDL Database lvlanagement Limited Subsidiary of Associate of lhe Ultimate Holding
Company

14 Market Simplified lndia Limited (formerly known as
INXS Technologies Limited)

Associate of the Holding Company

15 Computer Aqe Management Services Private Limit,ed ssocaate of the Holding Company
16 lnvestor Services Pvt Ltd. Subsidiary of the Associate of the Holdinq Comoanv
17 Receivables Exchange Of lndia Limited Holding Company's Joint Venture
18 NSE Educational Facilities Limited Fellow Subsidiary
19 NSE Academy Limited Fellow Subsidiary
20 NSE IFSC Limlted ubsidiarv of Ultimate holding company
21 NSE IFSC Clearino Corooration Limited iubsidiary of Ultimate holdinq companv s subsidiarv

NSE Foundation Subsidiary of Ultimate holdinq comoanv
23 Mr. P H. Ravikumar Key Managerial Personnel
24 lvlr Vi[ram Lrmaye Key Managerial Personnel (upto 28.04.2018)
25 l\,,1r. J Ravichandran Key iranagerial Personnel
26 l\,4r L. RaviSankar Key lranagerial Personnel
27 Mr. Srikanta Dash Key lvlanagerial Personnel
28 Mr. Mukesh Agarwal Key Managerial Personnel
29 l\,Ir. RaviVaranasi Key Managerial Personnel (w.e.f. 28.04.2018)

Name of the Related Party Nature of Transactions Year ended 31.03.2019 Year ended
31.03.2018

National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited Reimbursement of expenses
for staff on deputation paid/
oavable

548.20 394 37

Space and lnfrastructure
usage charges paid / payable

186.57 129 50

Amount paid / payable
towards Revenue Sharing

2.694.16 2 254.60

Amount paid / payable
towards CTCL Empanellment
charoes

5 75

Reimbursement Paid/Payable
for other expenses (including
taxes)

86.16 46 07

Recovery of Web Trading
exoenses incurred

2,508.03 1,897.41

Recovery towards NOW dues
from members

181.45 182 09

Closing balance (Credit)/Debit 253.24 (39.91)

a,yL+



\ & ANALYTICS LIMITED

LY KNOWN AS OOTEX TNTERNATTONAL LtMtrED)
inancial statements for tho year snded March 31, 2Oi9

NSE lT Limited Amount payable towards Sale
& Technical Support charges
for NOW project, Scripting
supporl for Web Trading
testing automation products
and reimbursemenl of olher
expenses.

208.30

(Rs. ln lakhs)

179..18

New NOW development
(capex)

214.79 24.03

lT Management &
Consultancy Charges, Help
desk charges for CKYC
pro.iect & Stratus AMC

r r 3.87 96.30

Closing balance (106.34) ( 1 80.571

\SE lndices Limited (Formerly known as hdia tndei-
Services & Products Limited)

Fees for data used in real
time index creation (including
advance) paid/payable

52.62 44.74

)ata Subscription Fees
Receivable

56.31 50.84

Recovery of 50% salary cost
paid to CEO (KMP)

1E8.00 155.31

Recovery of employee liability
in respect of transfered
employees

4.59

Purchase consideration for
lurchase of fixed income
r'aluation assets paid/
lavable

730.77

Reimbursement
Received/Receivable f or
other expenses (including
taxes)

8.66 9.24

Closinq balance 24.54 12.65

lIarket Simptitied tndia Limited -icense Fees paid / payable 70.80 76.2a

Closing balance (1 0.60)

lSE lnvestment Limited (Formerly knoM as NSE
3trategic lnvestment Corporation Limited)

Dividend Paid 1,690.00 1 ,800.00

Note : Outstandino balance as on 01 .04.201 6. Rs.Nil (in Cunent Asssets) and Rs.Nil (in Current Liabilities)

SAMS lnvestor Services Private Limited KRA fees received /
receivable

17.76 36.74

(RA fees Paid / pavable 0.27 0.27
3losing balance 3.21 2.86

NSDL Database Management Limited KRA fees received /
receivable

5.06 8.48

KRA fees Paid / payable 0.54 1.62
Closino balance 0.03 0.87

NSE IFSC Limited NOW Charges received/
receivable

5.00 4.12

Closinq balance 4.12

NSE Foundation )ayment towards Share
qDolication monev

0.10

rayment of contribution to
ISR activities

89.14 244.17

Mr. P. H. Ravikumar Director Sitting Fees 8.75 10.00

Reimbursement of expenses

Vr. Srikanta Dash Director Sitting Fees 6.00 7.00

Reimbursement of expenses 4.56 6.15

Mr. L. Ravi Sankar Director Sitting Fees 8.75 10.00

Reimbursement of expenses 0.19

Mr. Mukesh Agrawal Gross Remuneration
ncluding allowances, non-
:ash perquisites and
rontribution to Provident Fund
rnd Superannuation Fund
ilc

145.46 131 .23

wLZ
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(l)

(iv)

(v)

Employee genefits

Provjdent Fund: The company is registered with Regional Providenl Fund Office and both the emptoyee and the emptoyer make
monlhly contdbution equarto 12% of the emproyee's basic salary respectivery in case of Managing tiircctor, Mr. Muies; Agarwar.

Sup€rannuatjon: Superannualion benefils for employees designated as chief manageB and above are covered by group polioes with
the Life lnsulance Conoration of lndaa maintained by the Holding company. The co;fibution for the year is reimbu;sed to the hotding
company is charged lo revenue. There are no other obtigations otherlhan the annual conlibution paiable.

Gratuity: Provisions are made for the defined beneft with respect to gratuity tiabitig based on the present vatue of detined benefit
obligation as rcduced by the fairvalue of ptan assets as per the actuarial valuation calculation.

Leave Encashmenl: Liability on account of Leave encashment 6 provided based on Actudal valuation at Balance sheel dale

Short tem employee benenb are cha.ged lo revenue in the year in which the retated serui@ is rendercd

(ir)

(ir )

Provlslon

Provlslon for employee benefits
Medical benelits

Provisron tor Leave Travel allowance

Provision for graluity

Provision for Leave encashment

Short - term
03 2018 .03.2019 31 03 2018

2t _79

4.09 1.70
11.89 0.14 0.08

- 14.29 14 29
21.79 ffi

(Rs in lakhs)

a)

Dlsclo3ure under lndian accountlng Standard l9 (lnd A3 l9) on Employee Beneit as notilted undorRute 3 oftl|e companies
(lndbn Accounting slend.rds) Rutes, 2ois and compentes (tndian Accounting siandards) Amondment Rute!, 2016.

Definod Benetit Plan :

Provident Fund: Company has contribuied Rs 8 06lacs {Previous Year Rs 6 46 tacs) towards provident Flnd during the year ended
March 31, 2019 to Emptoyee Provident Fund Organisation.

Graluilyi The company prcvides irr gratuily for employees as per Paymenl of Graluity Act, 1972. Emptoyees who are in continuous
seruice fora penod of 5 years are eligible for glatuily, The amount ofG€luity is payabte on retkemenutemination of the emptyee,s
lasl drawn basic salary per month multiplied for the number of years ofservice. The gratuity ptan is a non funded ptan and the
company makes prcvision on lhe basis of Actuarial Valuation.

(i)

b)

Balance Sheet (Rs n akhs)

The amounts recognlsed in the batance sheet and the movemenls In the net oennid benefiioEiiliii6
overthe year tre as tollows:

Current Year 31.03.2019
Llability at the beginning otthe year 't 1.97 6.52
lnlerest cosl 090 045
Cunent Service Cosl 396 329
Liabilily transfered 1.50
Benefils Pard

Acluarial (Garns)/Losses on Obtagations - Due to
Change in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial(Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Oue to
Chanoe in Financial Assum olions

002 (0.52)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 06 Obligations - Due to 3.57
Liability at the end ofthe year 2,t.92 11 97

The amounts recognised ln the balance 3heet and the movements ln the fatrvatue ot plan assob over
the yoar aro ag lollows:

Current Year 31.03.2019
Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning ofthe yea

lnterest lncome

Expected return on plan assels

Contrbuti06s
Transler,rom other company

Benefits paid

Actuarial(Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to

Fair Value of plan as*ts at the end ofth6 year

(ii)

L1



NSE OATA & ANALYTICS LIiIITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITEO)

Notes to financial statements ,or the year ended March 31, 2019

(Rs in lakhs)

The net liatlilitu disclosed above relates to funded olans are as follows:
Current Year 31.03.2019 Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year

Liability as at the end of the year 121.92 (11.97)

Net (liability) / asset l'21.92]. (11.97)

Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Current Year 3'1.03.20'19 Previous Year

Opening Net Liability 11.97 662
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 4.86 3.7 4

Expenses Recognized in OCI 3.60 '1.61

Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer in 1.50

Employers Contribution

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 21.92 11 .97

Statement of Profit & Loss

Net lnterest Cost for Current Period
Current Year 31.03.20'19 Previous Year

lnterest Cost 090 0.45

lnterest lncome

Net lnterest Cost for Current Period 0.90 0.45

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
current Year 3'1,03.2019 Previous Year

Current Service cost 639

Net lnterest Cost 1.64 0.90

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 8.03 4.86

Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive lncome
Current Year 31.03.2019 Previous Year

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 3.60 161

Net (lncome)/Expense for the Period Recognized in OCI 3.60

Fair value of plan assets at the Balance Sheet Date for defined benefit obliqations
Current Year 31.03.2019 Previous Year

lnsurer Managed Funds

Total

(iv)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sensitivity Analysis
Current Year 3'l.03.2019 Previous Year

*ojecteO genefit OUligation on Current Assumptions 21 92 11 .97

oetta Ettect of *tol" Change an Rate of Discounting ( ) (0 66)

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 1.21 0.71

Oetta effect or *l % Change in Rate of Salary lncrease 1.19 070

Delta Etfect of -1"/" Change in Rate of Salary lncrease (1 .12) (0.66)

Delta Effect of *1'Z Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.32) (0.28)

Dexa Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 032 0.28

Significant actuarial assumptions are as
Current Year 31.03.2019 Previous Year

Discount Rate 7.48vo 6.770/o

Rate of Return on Plan Assets NA, N,A

Salary Escalation 8.00% 8.00"/"

Attrition Rate 
^

12.0070 12.00o/o

zo ary
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NSE OATA & ANALYTICS LIMITEO
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITEO)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company
Profit for the year

Weighted average number of equity shares used as

Earnings per equity share (basic and diluted) (in
Rs.)

Capital and other commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account (net of advances) and not
provided
Other Commitments
Total

Contingent liability:

lncome tax matters

Goods & Service Tax matters

Show cause cum demand notice pending with
Commissioner of Goods & Service Tax (Appeal)
Total

Expenditure in foreign currency:

Traveling expense

Meeting & Conference Expenses

Fees & Subscription

Director Sitting fees

Business Promotion

Total

Earnings in foreign exchange :

Online Oatafeed Service Fees

Total

(Rs in lakhs)

31.03.20't 9 31 .03.2018

4,896.22

90.00

54.40

3,826.01

90.00

42.51

28

29

31.03.2019 31 .03.201 8

1,284.',t2

607 .44

344.50

386.64
1 ,89r .56 731.14

31.03.2019 31.03.2018

817 .2'.1

24.20

't2.74

805.89

12.7 4

854.'l5 818.62

31 .03.20r 9 31 .03.201 8

4.36

4.56

13.37

8.75

5.84

9.97

1 10

7.00
, ,o

31.03 23.92

3'l

31 .03.2019 31 .03.2018

6,763.39 5,091 .22

6,763.39 5,091.22

<t
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NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)
Note 32 - Fair Value Measurements

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy:

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining thefairvalues ofthefinancial instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into the three level prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each
level follows underneath the table.

.ln lakhs

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair Value -

recurring fair Value measurements At 31 Mar, 2019
Notes Level 'l Level 2 Total

31 Mar, 2019

Financial Assets
Financial lnvestments at FVPL
Mutual Fund - GroMh Plan
Exchange Traded Funds

o

4
'to.388.22

395.70
10,388.22

395.70

Total Financial Assets 10,783.92 10,783.92

Assets and Liabilities which are measured at Amortised
cost for which - recurring fair Value measurements At 3'l
Mar,2019

Notes Level 1 LeYel 2
Total

31 Mar,20'19

Financial Assets
lnvestments
Taxfree Bonds
Fixed Deoosit

2,445.42
1 ,244.13

2.445.42
1,244.13

Total Financial Assets 3,689.55 3,689.55

Financial Liabilities
Borrowinqs
Total Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair Value -
recurring fair Value measurements At 31 Mar, 2018

Notes Level I LeYel 2
Total

31 Mar, 2018

Financial Assets
Financial lnvestments at FVPL
Mutual Fund - GroMh Plan
Exchange Traded Funds

I
4

10,954.06
731.87

'10,954.06

731.87

Total Financial Assets 11,685.93 1 1,685.93

Assets and Liabilities which are measured at Amortised
Cost for which - recurring fairValue measurements At 31

2,459.O2
728.31

'b2-



NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

Note 32 (a) . Fair Value Measurements
Financial lnstruments by category

31-Mar-18

FVPL FVoCI Amortised cost
31-Mar-19

FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost

2,459.02
728.31

2,445.42
1.244.13

10,388.22

FinancialAssets
lnvestments

Taxfree Bonds
Fixed Deposits
Mutual Funds

11,585.93 - 3,187.33

Z3



NSE DATA & ANALYTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS OOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)
Note 32 (b) Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at amortised Cost

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits, other bank balance, advance to related party, other receivables,

trade payables, creditors for capital expenditure, other liabilities and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the

same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounls are equal to their fair values.

Significant estimates
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active market is determined using valuation techniques. The

Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market

conditions existing at each reporting period.

ln lakhs
31-Mar-'19 31-Mar-18

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets
Debentures
Taxfree Bonds
Fixed Deposits

2,445.42
1 .244.13

2,529.94
1,245.62

2.459.02
7?8.31

2,469.38
730.53

Total Financial Assets 3,689.55 3,77 5.56 3,187.33 3,199.91

Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Z+



NSE DATA & ANALYTTCS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOwl{ AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED}
Note3 to the tinencial st temenE,or tho yearend€d 31st t arch,2019

(All amounls in Rs. ln lekhs, urloss olhorwise slsl6d)

33 (a) MANAGEMENT OF MARKET R|SK
The company's size and operations result an it being exposed to the followrng mark€l risks that arise from ils use offnancial inslruments. pdce riski and
. interest rate risk
The abovo risks may aftect the company's income and expenses, orlhe value of its financial instruments. The objective ofthe company.s management ofmarket risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, whil6 oplimising retuans The company's exposuie to, and management of. these risks isexplained below.

33 (b) MANAGEMENT OF CREOTT R|SK

credil nsk is the nsk offnancjalloss to th€ company if a cuslomer or counter-party taals to meel its contractual obligations.
Tndo roceivables
All trade rec€ivablos are review€d and assessed for default annually.

our histo.ical experience of collecting receivables, supported by the reverofdefaurt, is ihat credit nsk is row.

Olher linancial assels
The company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, lerm deposils with banks, investments in commercial papers, government securities,investmenls in mutualfunds and exchange traded funds. The company hes difersifed portfotio of investmenl wilh variousnum;r of counter-partres which
have secure crodit ratinos hence the risk is reduced. lndividual dsk limits are set Ior each counter-party based on tnancial positi;n, credit ratang and past
experionce. Credit limits and concentralion of exposures ar€ actively monilored by the Compeny,s Treasury aepartmeni- 

- '- - - -

The Company's maximum exposure lo credit risk as at March 31, 2019, and March 31, 2018 is the carying value of each ctass of financial assets as disctosed
in note 4 and 9.

is mainly exposed to the pnce ,isk-iEto-
investmenl in mutual funds and exchange traded funds The
pnce risk arises due lo uncerlainties about the future market

31st March 2019, the exposure to price risk due to
investment in muluatfunds amounted to Rs. .tO.388.22 takhs
(March 31, 2018: Rs 10,954 06 takhs).

31st March 2019, the exposure to price risk due to
in exchange tradod fund amounled to Rs. 3gS.7O

(Marcn 31, 2018: Rs. 731.87 takhs).

ln order lo manage ils
rnveslments in mulual funds, the

diversifes its portfolio rn
with the limits set by tho risk

The Treasury deparlmenl mainlains a
list of approved financial instruments

use ofany new inveslmenl musl be

approximate impact of prce
with respecl lo mutual funds and oxchange

traded funds , lhe Company has calculated the
rmpacl as follows.

For mutualfunds, a 0.25% inqease rn prices woulc,
led to approximatety an additionat Rs 25 97
gain in lhe Stalement of Profit and Loss

7-18: Rs. 27 39 lakhs gain) A O 25% decrease
in prices would have ted to an equal but opposite

exchange traded fund. a 10% increase in
prices would have led lo approximatety an

Rs. 39..57 lakhs gain in lhe Stalement of
Profit and Loss (2017-18: Rs. 73.j0 takhs). A 10%

in pdces would have led lo an equal but

.Aq



NSE DATA & AI{ALYTICS LIM]TED
(FORMERLY XNOWN AS DOTEX IIIITERNATIONAL LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements

(Allomounts in Rs.ln lokhs, unless otheNise stoted)

33 (.) CAPITAI" MANAGEMENT

The Company considers the followine components ot ils Balance Sheet to be mana8ed capital:

Total equity {as shown in the balance sheet, includinS non-controlling lnterests, retained profit, other reserves, share capital, share premium}

The Company manages its capital so as to safeSuard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders. The capital
structureofthe Company is based on management's judgement ofthe appropriate balance of key elements in orderto meet its strategicand day to
day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capitalstructure in light ofahanges in economia conditions and the
risk characteristics ofthe underlying assets. lnordertomaintainoradjustthecapitalstructure,thegroupmayadjusttheamountofdividendspaidto
shareholders, return capital to shaaeholders or issue new shares.

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market

confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if
necess a ry adiu st, its capitalstructure. Company is not subject to financialcovenants in anyofits significant flnancing agreements.

The management monitors the return on capitalas wellas the levelofdividends to shareholders. The Company's goalisto continue to be able to
return e)(cess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods. Refer note 13(a) for the final and interim dividends

declared and paid.

a6
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(FORMERLY KNOWN AS DOTEX INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

b.

For K. S. AIYAR & CO.

Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Regislration No:'100't86W
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Delails of due3 to micro and amall, medlum enterpri36 as derined under the USMED Act, 2006

Trade payable includes Rs. 10.81 lacs ( Previous Year : Rs Nrl) due to Micro. Small & Medium Enterprises. Tolal oulstanding dues lo
Micro, Sm6ll & Medium Enterpdses have been determined lo the extent such parties have been identified on the basis ofinformation
available with the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) :

Gross amount required to be spent by ihe Company on CSR activilies during lhe finanoal yea. ended March 31. 2019 is Rs. 89.14 lacs (Previous Year Rs
82 43 lacs)

'During the previous year, NSE Group incorporated NSE Foundation to undertake CSR activities for the Group. Accordingly, the Company has contributed
Rs 161.74 lakhs pertaining lo unspenl CSR amount uplo March 2017 and an amount of Rs 82.43 lakhs for iho year ond6d March 31,2018 aggregating lo Rs
244 17 lakhs lo NSE Foundahon to be spent on CSR activities as stated in the Group CSR policy which has been adopted by the Company as Company's
CSR policy.
Accordingly, the unspnl amounl pertaining to CSR upto March 2017 amounting to Rs 161.74 lakhs which was t€nsferred to CSR ReseNe by way of
approprialion from lhe relained earnings has been transferred back from the CSR reserve to retained eamings in th6 prov,ous year.

NSE Foundation is incorporated under section I oflhe CompaniesAct, 2013 and intends to apply its profits, if sny, or olher income in promoting its objects
and any paymeni ofdivid€nd to its members as prohibited. Accordingly, in ih6 previous year the investment in lhe company has been written down to Re 1/-

which was written off amounting to Rs. 9,999/- and th6 same has b€en debited to th€ Statement of Proft and Loss during the previorrs year

On February 28, 2019, the Honorable Supreme Court of lndia delivered a judgement in the case of'Vivekananda Vidyamandir and Others Vs The Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner (ll)West Bengal'in relation to non-exclusron of cerlain allowances fom the definition of "basic wages" ofthe relevant
employees for the purposes of determining contdbution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & I\riscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 The
Employees' Provident Fund Organisation also issued a circular (Circular No. C-U1(33)201gMvekananda Vidyamandir/284) dated March 20 20l9rnrelation
to aforesaid matter
ln Companys assessment, the abovejudgement is not likely to have a s€nificanl ampacl and lherefore presently no provrsion has been made in lhe
Financial Statements. The Company will continue to monitor the developments in lhis matter.

Previous yearfigures have been regrouDed / reclassified wherever necessary.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

* A s..d*.al
SACHIN A. NEGANDHI

Partner
Menbership Number: 1 12888

Place : Mumbai
Date : April25,2019

MUKESH AGARWAL

Managing Director
(DrN 0305,r853)

VIOHIJOBANPUTRA

coJnpany Secretaryw

Amount sDent durinq the vear on (Rs n akhs)

Particulars ln Cash Yet to be paid in
Cash

Total

Construction / acquisition of any asset Current Year

On purposes other than (i) above through Conlribulion Current Year 89.14 89 14

On purposes olher than (i) above 244.17 244 17
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